
MAYOR  CITY MANAGER 

Shirley Sessions Dr. Shawn Gillen 

 
CITY COUNCIL CLERK OF COUNCIL  
Barry Brown, Mayor Pro Tem Jan LeViner 

Brian West  

Jay Burke CITY ATTORNEY 
Nancy DeVetter Edward M. Hughes 

Spec Hosti 
Monty Parks  

 CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

 

A G E N D A  
REGULAR MEETING OF TYBEE ISLAND CITY COUNCIL 

March 09, 2023 at 6:30 PM 
Please silence all cell phones during Council Meetings 

 
 
 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation 
     Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda  
 
Announcements 
 
Consideration of the approval of the minutes of the meetings of the Tybee island City Council 

1. Minutes:  City Council Meeting February 23, 2023 
 
Citizens to be Heard:  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Maximum allowable times of 5 
minutes. 

2. Pat Leiby:  Tybee MLK Human Rights Organization 
 
If there is anyone wishing to speak to anything on the agenda other than the Public Hearings, 
please come forward.  Please limit comments to 3-5 minutes. 
 
Consideration of Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
Public Hearings 

3. Map and Text Amendment to change zoning from R-1 to R-T.  Fort Screven Villas Condo 
Association 

4. Special Review:  1517 and 1517B Chatham Avenue.  Sarah ad Ben Beason 
 
Consideration of Ordinances, Resolutions 

5. Resolution:  2023-04 Opposition to HB 517 
 
 

- Page 1 -



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 
6. Brian West:  Modify the existing Tree Ordinance 

 
Executive Session 
     Discuss litigation, personnel and real estate  
 
Possible vote on litigation, personnel and real estate discussed in executive session 
 
Adjournment 
 
Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are  
required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations 
for those persons.   
 
*PLEASE NOTE:  Citizens wishing to speak on items listed on the agenda, other than public hearings, 

should do so during the citizens to be heard section.  Citizens wishing to place items on the council 
meeting agenda must submit an agenda request form to the City Clerk’s office by Thursday at 5:00PM 

prior to the next scheduled meeting.  Agenda request forms are available outside the Clerk’s office at City 
Hall and at www.cityoftybee.org. 
 

 

 

THE VISION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to make Tybee Island the premier beach community in which to live, work, and play.” 
 

 

 

THE MISSION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to provide a safe, secure and sustainable environment by delivering superior services through responsible 
planning, preservation of our natural and historic resources, and partnership with our community to ensure 
economic opportunity, a vibrant quality of life, and a thriving future.” 

 

 

- Page 2 -



File Attachments for Item:

1. Minutes:  City Council Meeting February 23, 2023

- Page 3 -Item #1.



City Council Minutes February 23, 2023 
 
Mayor Sessions called the meeting to order at 6:30PM, February 23, 2023.  Those in 
attendance were Brian West, Monty Parks, Barry Brown, Jay Burke and Spec Hosti.  Also 
attending were Dr. Shawn Gillen, City Manager; Michelle Owens, Assistant City Manager; 
Bubba Hughes, City Attorney; Tracy O’Connell, City Attorney; George Shaw, Director, 
Planning and Zoning; and Jan LeViner, Clerk of Council.   
 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Posting of the Colors and Pledge of Allegiance, American Legion Post 154 
     Invocation:  Jan LeViner, City Clerk 
 
Mayor Sessions added the following to the Consent Agenda: 

 Minutes:  City Council Meeting January 12, 2023 
 Minutes:  City Council Meeting January 26, 2023 
 Attachments to the Minutes 

 
Reports of Staff, Boards, Standing Committees and/or Invited Guest.  Limit 
reports to 10 minutes. 
Peyton Jones, Tybee Island Youth Council Liaison, approached Mayor and Council 
to give a report on the Youth Council’s recent trip to Savannah/Chatham Day in Atlanta.  
Ms. Jones thanked Mayor and Council for opportunity to travel and experience the event.  
Mayor Sessions thanked Ms. Jones. 
 
Jan LeViner and Haley Hill approached Mayor and Council to give a brief report on the 
trip to Savannah Chatham Day.  Mayor Sessions thanked both for their work with the 
Youth Council. 
 
Alan Robertson approached Mayor and Council to introduce Harold Marlow, 
President, Warwick Group, Washington, DC and Dan Ginolfi, Sr. Public Policy 
Advisor, Warwick Group, Washington, DC.  Mr. Marlow gave a brief report on the 
following: 

o Recent successes on behalf of the City 
o Federal Funding Goals for this year 
o Corps of Engineers Issues for 2023 and beyond 

Mr. Ginolfi reported on recent successes and future funding  for re-nourishments.  Mayor 
Sessions thanked both men for their hard work and dedication to the City. 
 
Spec Hosti made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  Monty Parks seconded.  
Vote was unanimous to approve, 5-0.   
 
Nancy DeVetter joined the meeting. 
 
 

- Page 4 -Item #1.



Public Hearings 
Minor Subdivision plat approval: requesting to create two lots that are not 
rectangles-712 2nd  Ave.-Zone R-2-40005 18014-Gail Lamb. George Shaw 
approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Shaw stated the petitioner bought a residence at 
712 2nd Avenue and would like to make two lots without disturbing the existing home and 
without asking for a variance.  This would be a creation of an irregular lot which meets 
all the City’s requirements as to size and width.  Planning Commission recommended 
approval unanimously and Staff made no recommendation as it meets all requirements.  
Gail Lamb approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Lamb gave a brief description of the lot 
and stated the hardship if not approved would be to take off 4’ of the residence.  She 
continued, the shed has been removed from the property and a new one has been put 
in.  She is asking for approval.  Keith Gay approached to speak in favor of this request.    
Barry Brown made a motion to approve.  Nancy DeVetter seconded.  Vote was 
unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Tree Appeal: 8 Waterside Walk-appeal of actions Sec. 7-100 regarding denial 
of tree permit-William Gordon.  George Shaw approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. 
Shaw stated the petitioner has a house on Waterside Walk and would like to add a pool 
to the property.  There is a significant tree, Red Cedar, where he would like to put the 
pool and the Ordinance states you may not cut down a significant tree. Staff determined 
there is an economic use of the property and the pool would enhance but is not necessary 
for the economic use of the property.  Staff denied the permit for the tree removal and 
the petitioner is appealing the decision.  Staff is denying the appeal and Planning 
Commission recommended denial 2-1.  William Gordon joined the meeting via ZOOM.  
Mr. Gordon gave a brief history of the property to include hiring a contractor to design 
and build the pool.  He is also asking for mitigation with removing the tree by replacing 
with another tree.  Mr. Gordon asked for approval with this appeal.  Ms. DeVetter asked 
Mr. Gordon if this is currently an STR.  Mr. Gordon confirmed.  Spec Hosti made a motion 
to approve.  Brian West seconded.  Voting in favor were Brian West, Spec Hosti and Jay 
Burke.  Those voting against were Nancy DeVetter, Monty Parks and Barry Brown.  Shirley 
Sessions voting to deny.  Vote to deny, 4-3. 
 
Agenda Request: Private Parking Lot Renewals: All requirements met.  Dr. 
Gillen explained the request.  Russell Bridges and Marianne Bramble approached 
Mayor and Council.  Mr. Bridges thanked Mayor and Council for the annual approval of 
the parking lots.  He then asked for consideration for additional days as in the past 
approval has been for 31 days beginning with Memorial Day and ending with Labor Day.  
He is now asking for the beginning date of March through Labor Day.  Ms. Bramble 
thanked Mayor and Council. Monty Parks made a motion to approve as presented.   
Spec Hosti seconded.  Voting in favor were Brian West, Monty Parks, Jay Burke and 
Spec Hosti.  Voting to deny were Nancy DeVetter and Barry Brown.  Vote to approve, 4-
2. 
 
Agenda Request: Private Parking Lot Request-Palmer Prescott Parking: 
(Formerly lot licensed under Joyce Prescott).  Dr. Gillen stated what is before 

- Page 5 -Item #1.



them is a new application for a lot that was used prior to last year was a private parking 
lot.  Mayor Sessions and Tracy O’Connell gave a brief history of the application process 
for the Prescott Parking Lot in 2022.  Ms. Prescott was granted a license but later revoked.  
The recommendation from Council in May of 2022 was to allow Ms. Prescott to reapply 
in 2023.  The application was submitted under the name of Palmer Prescott but also 
showing Joyce Prescott as one of the owners.  Mr. Parks asked if the permit is issued to 
the individual or to the property.  Ms. O’Connell stated to the owner of the property.  
Palmer Prescott approached Mayor and Council. Mr. Prescott stated his mother is not 
capable of operating the parking lot, as she is ill.  Ms. DeVetter asked Ms. O’Connell for 
clarification.  Ms. O’Connell stated  there is concern, as Ms. Prescott should be applying 
and not Palmer Prescott.  Mr. Parks stated his objection when this was submitted last 
year, the application was not complete and this year it is complete.  He would also like 
to see documentation that Palmer Prescott is authorized to act on behalf of his mother, 
Joyce Prescott. Mr. Prescott confirmed he has Power of Attorney for his mother and was 
not asked to submit when his submitted his request.  He also confirmed that if and when 
Ms. Prescott expires, they will no longer operate the private parking lot. Dr. West 
confirmed name on the application is indeed for Joyce Prescott and not Palmer Prescott.  
Mr. Prescott confirmed.  Mr. Parks recommended Mr. Prescott bring in document and give 
to Ms. Shaver.  Dr. Gillen asked for clarification of Mr. Parks recommendation.  Ms. 
Bramble approached Mayor and Council to confirm Mr. Prescott is the person that has 
been operating the private parking lot over the recent years.  She also clarified that 
application for private parking lots need to be submitted by December 15th and not 
December 30th as all other businesses on the Island.  Monty Parks made a motion to 
approve with the condition that adequate documentation is submitted to show Mayor and 
Council are approving a private parking lot is for Joyce Prescott.  Spec Hosti seconded.  
Voting in favor were Brian West, Monty Parks, Jay Burke and Spec Hosti.  Voting against 
were Nancy DeVetter and Barry Brown.  Vote to approve, 4-2. 
 
Consideration of Local Requests & Applications – Funding, Special Events, 
Alcohol License 
Agenda Request: Fin's Corner Pizza: Alcohol and Entertainment License, Beer 
& Wine-Sunday Sales. (Formerly Tybee Island Pizza & Ice Cream).  Monty 
Parks stated he has questions with this application as well as others.  Mr. Parks expressed 
his concerns with possible noise from the business.  Ms. DeVetter recommended the 
application be changed to ask for more specificity where or not there will be live music, 
inside or outside, as the application has no information at all for plans for entertainment.  
She then requested that the forms ask for specificity related to entertainment licenses.  
This would include days for entertainment, hours, and amplified or not.  Mayor Sessions 
added this project to Dr. Gillen’s Action Item List and further asked if he would send a 
draft to Mayor and Council for any other recommendations. Mr. Hughes stated in the past 
conditions have been placed on the businesses when approved.  Mayor pro tem Brown 
then suggested the application for private parking lots need to be updated as well.  Mr. 
Hughes stated it should not be a business license but should be a permit for operation to 
include clarification that it is for only one generation.  He continued, Mayor and Council 
have the ability to impose conditions on the entertainment tonight.   Jay Burke made a 

- Page 6 -Item #1.



motion to approve the Alcohol License, Beer and Wine and Sunday Sales and hold on 
Entertainment License until more information is received.  Monty Parks seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve, 6-0.   
 
Agenda Request: Frozen Daiquiri LLC dba The Daiquiri Bar: Entertainment & 
Alcohol License Liquor, Beer, Wine-Sunday Sales for consumption on premises.  
Jay Burke questioned outside entertainment and Sunday sales.  He continued, as there 
is no kitchen they cannot have Sunday sales.  Mr. Hughes explained the ordinance as the 
business needs to have 50% of sales to qualify for Sunday Sales License.  Mayor Sessions 
referred to the Breakfast Club as to their zoning.  Mr. Hughes responded C-1. Mr. Burke 
asked Dr. Gillen if this is considered one building or two.  Dr. Gillen stated two individual 
buildings, Breakfast Club and The Daiquiri Bar.  Dr. West recommended the same motion 
be made in regards to the Entertainment License as made previously made for Fin’s.  
Mayor Session confirmed. Mr. Hughes read from the Georgia Code where the business is 
required to have a full operational kitchen and have 50% of food sales to qualify for 
Sunday Sales License. Chief Kendrick approached Mayor and Council to speak to a 
preliminary fire inspection in regards to the Breakfast Club.  He continued, they are going 
to install a small chef kitchen.  Another issue is to install a separate water meter for the 
apartment to the rear of the building. Spec Hosti made a motion to approve as 
presented.  Motion died for lack of a second.  Barry Brown made a motion to table to a 
later date in order to get more information.  Monty Parks seconded.  Voting in favor 
were Brian West, Monty Parks, Nancy DeVetter, Barry Brown and Jay Burke.  Voting 
against was Spec Hosti.  Vote to approve, 5-1.  Discussion:  Mayor pro tem Brown 
stated that should not be an additional fee for the application for the petitioner to come 
back before Mayor and Council. 
 
Agenda Request: King Neptune's Inc: Entertainment & Alcohol License Liquor, 
Beer, Wine, Sunday Sales-For consumption on Premises Only. Monty Parks 
when this business was formerly Benny’s there were conditions on the entertainment, as 
the back door needs to be shut.  He recommended that condition be carried over to the 
new owners with no outside entertainment; no entertainment on the porch; back door 
needs to be closed during entertainment; and windows closed when there is 
entertainment.  Mr. Parks stated if he were to make a motion, it would include no 
entertainment on the back porch, back door needs to be closed, and all entertainment 
must be inside the building.  Stu Putman approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Putman 
stated it is a misprinted as it is their intent not to have Sunday sales, as they will not be 
open on Sunday’s.  There is a strong local following and would like to keep in the same 
tradition.  Ms. DeVetter referred to a statement on the application where he indicated he 
has had a alcohol license suspended.  Mr. Putman explained that at his business in 
Savannah there was a tragic incident. During the investigation, his business was closed 
but reopened within thirty days. Mr. Putman again stated, they will not be open on Sunday 
for business.  Ms. DeVetter asked Mr. Putman his intentions for entertainment.  Mr. 
Putman stated the building is a 4,500 sq ft building with multi-use building.  The 
entertainment will be in the center of the building so there will not be an issue with noise.  

- Page 7 -Item #1.



 

Monty Parks made a motion to approve without Sunday Sales and to have inside 
entertainment only.  Brian West seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0.   
 
Consideration of Ordinances, Resolutions 

 Second Reading, 2023-04. Sec 7-050, Tree Removal Requirements.  Monty 
Parks made a motion to approve.  Spec Hosti seconded.  Vote was unanimous to 
approve, 6-0. 
 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 
Bubba Hughes:  708 Butler Avenue, Update.  Mr. Hughes gave a brief update on 

708 Butler Avenue.  The approvals recently occurred regarding the Infrastructure 

Engineering and the permits will be issued by George Shaw.  The developer has signed 

the Agreement, as has the City.  There are documents to be recorded on Friday, February 

24th.  The permit for the tree trimming and removal as indicated and the work is scheduled 

to happen on March 2, 2023 at 9:00AM.  The City Arborist, Brent Levy, will be on site as 

well as Zachary Bennett.  The final plat approval will come back before Mayor and Council 

once the infrastructure is in place.  There is no action required by Mayor and Council as 

long as they agree.   

 
 Shawn Gillen gave an update on the Action Item List.   
 
Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss litigation and 
real estate. Brian West seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Monty Parks made a motion to return to regular session.  Spec Hosti seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Spec Hosti made a motion to adjourn.  Monty Parks seconded.  Vote was unanimous 
to approve, 6-0. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:30PM 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Janet LeViner, MMC 
Clerk of Council 

- Page 8 -Item #1.



File Attachments for Item:

3. Map and Text Amendment to change zoning from R-1 to R-T.  Fort Screven Villas Condo 

Association

- Page 9 -Item #3.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: March 9
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

A nine unit condominium is on a parcel zoned R-1 which does not allow for
multifamily dwellings.  Applicant requests rezoning to make the structure
conforming.

Amend zoning map to remove this non-conformity

1-MAP AMEND-7 OCEANVW CT.pdf

- Page 10 -Item #3.



- Page 11 -Item #3.



- Page 12 -Item #3.



- Page 13 -Item #3.



- Page 14 -Item #3.



- Page 15 -Item #3.



- Page 16 -Item #3.



- Page 17 -Item #3.



- Page 18 -Item #3.



- Page 19 -Item #3.



- Page 20 -Item #3.



- Page 21 -Item #3.



- Page 22 -Item #3.



- Page 23 -Item #3.



- Page 24 -Item #3.



- Page 25 -Item #3.



- Page 26 -Item #3.



- Page 27 -Item #3.



- Page 28 -Item #3.



- Page 29 -Item #3.



- Page 30 -Item #3.



- Page 31 -Item #3.



- Page 32 -Item #3.



- Page 33 -Item #3.



- Page 34 -Item #3.



- Page 35 -Item #3.



- Page 36 -Item #3.



- Page 37 -Item #3.



- Page 38 -Item #3.



- Page 39 -Item #3.



File Attachments for Item:

4. Special Review:  1517 and 1517B Chatham Avenue.  Sarah ad Ben Beason

- Page 40 -Item #4.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: March 9
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Applicant wants to combine their two lots into one but needs approval of guest
cottage to allow two homes on one lot.

Combine two lots into one with guest cottage for family.

2-SPECIAL REVIEW-1517 CHATHAM.pdf

- Page 41 -Item #4.



- Page 42 -Item #4.



- Page 43 -Item #4.



- Page 44 -Item #4.



- Page 45 -Item #4.



- Page 46 -Item #4.



- Page 47 -Item #4.



- Page 48 -Item #4.



- Page 49 -Item #4.



- Page 50 -Item #4.



File Attachments for Item:

5. Resolution:  2023-04 Opposition to HB 517

- Page 51 -Item #5.



- Page 52 -Item #5.



- Page 53 -Item #5.


